PUBLIC ART AND PLACEMENT ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE
MONDAY OCTOBER 18, 2021 – 5:30 P.M.
CITY HALL – 1ST FLOOR CHAMBERS 100 N ANDREWS AVENUE
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33312 HYBRID MEETING

	Cumulative Attendance Board Members
	Attendance
	
	

	
	
	Present
	Absent

	Bonnie Barnett
	P
	6
	1

	Bonnie Clearwater
	P
	4
	3

	Diane Weinbrum
	A
	0
	1

	Martha G. Steinkamp
	P
	7
	0

	Michelle Howland
	P
	5
	2

	“Phoenix” Lynn Marks
	P
	7
	0

	Robyn Vegas
	P
	3
	0

	Sarah Glass
	P
	6
	1


Dec 2020 - Nov 2021
As of this date, there are 8 appointed members to the Board, which means 5 would constitute a quorum.

Staff
Carl Williams, Deputy Director of Recreation
Anthony Fajardo, Director of Sustainable Development
Leona Osamor, Grants Administrator

Public Attendees
John Hayes

Roll Call
Chairperson Sarah Glass called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. Roll was called, and it was determined that a quorum was present.

Approval of Minutes
Motion was made by Robyn Vegas and seconded by “Phoenix” Lynn Marks, that the minutes of August 30, 2021 be approved. In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously.

1. The Hayes Exhibit
Mr. John Hayes briefly introduced himself to the members of the board and confirmed that his dad, the late Mr. David Hayes was responsible for creating the exhibit. Mr. Hayes stated that from about the mid-nineties they have worked with


approximately forty different venues varying of both large and small sizes in the State of Florida, which has also been their largest area for exhibiting. Mr. Hayes further stated that they have also exhibited in other states such as Washington State and Indianapolis. Mr. Hayes stated that the current proposed exhibit is currently in the City of Gainesville Florida. Mr. Hayes told the board that one of the benefits to these types of temporary exhibits is that since the sculptures are being leased; there is no ownership of the sculptures and therefore no responsibility for the maintenance of the sculptures.

Deputy Director Mr. Carl Williams advised the board that there might be some opportunity for the funding of this temporary exhibit through the Beach CRA.

Board member Bonnie Clearwater stated that being in the current position of having to approve things like this, creates an issue that stems from the policy because the board will become inundated with these types of request. Mrs. Clearwater further stated that as a committee, they would be at the mercy of whoever is coming before the board and it puts them in a difficult situation since they would be the ones having to decide whether to put it through or not. Mrs. Clearwater also stated that she does not believe that this is what she signed up for as a member of the board but rather to identify, commission, and recommend works that were going to be for the Public Art Fund of Fort Lauderdale.

Board member “Phoenix” Lynn Marks stated that she was in agreement with the comments made by board member Bonnie Clearwater and stated that in the board’s earlier discussions as a group, the members were trying to establish what their brand was for the City of Fort Lauderdale. Ms. Marks further stated she believes it is important for us to refine what that brand is and get clarity of what that is otherwise it opens up the door for anyone to knock on our doors, which will take us away from mainly what our higher purpose is.

Board member Bonnie Clearwater further stated that it is nothing against Mr. Hayes or the David Hayes exhibit but if the City wants to have a temporary sculpture exhibition as they do in Park Avenue, which she thinks is also funded by the artist’s gallery; she personally feels that public spaces should not be a forum for a commercial business. Mrs. Clearwater also stated that the board is being presented with all these projects that have nothing to do with what they were asked to do which is recommend a first class arts in public places program of commissioned works.

Mr. Carl Williams stated that for clarification, the City already has a Public Art and Placement ordinance and the board’s role is to provide insight because of the board members background and expertise as it relates to art that are being requested for installation throughout the City of Fort Lauderdale. Mr. Williams further stated that the board would always get a variety of different projects from people wanting to paint murals or display projects of art throughout the City. Mr. Williams also stated
 (
Public
 
Art
 
&
 
Placement
 
Advisory
 
Board
 
October
 
18,
 
2021
Page
 
2
)


that the board would essentially be making recommendations on behalf of our City Commission although any works of art commissioned would still need to get the Commission’s approval depending upon the dollar value but as a board the responsibility is still to review those pieces of art that are being presented.

Board member Bonnie Clearwater responded to Mr. Williams by stating that as a board we will need to define what it is that we are interested in accepting otherwise if we accept one and do not accept the other or we accept everything then what will that look like in 2 years, 5 years or 10 years. Mrs. Clearwater further stated that she believes the point of the board was to brand the City as one of the major centers of arts in public places.

Board member Robyn Vegas stated that she was in agreement with board member Bonnie Clearwater and believes that it is important for the board to establish their own criteria or guidelines of what can be submitted and not just anything that comes in. Mrs. Vegas also stated that she believes this item should be tabled to the next meeting, as she does not believe the board has enough information to make a decision.

Board member “Phoenix” Lynn Marks stated that she believes the board should have the same standards when they are reviewing calls for artists as we do for someone just knocking on our doors. Ms. Marks also stated that there has to be consistency otherwise as board member Bonnie Clearwater stated as you look down the City in a year or two or three, it is going to be a hodgepodge and will not match the higher-level vision that the board agreed to do when they became members of the board. Board member Bonnie Barnett responded by stating she agreed with these comments one hundred percent.

Chairperson Sarah Glass inquired with Mr. Carl Williams on whether a call to artist could be done to give other artists a chance as well rather than just approving this temporary exhibit, as it would seem unfair since there may be other sculptors or installation artists that might want the chance as well.

Chairperson Sarah Glass posed a question to the board on whether they would like to table the matter for a future discussion and the board unanimously agreed.


2. Public Art Installations – Private Property
Director of Sustainable Development Mr. Anthony Fajardo made a brief introduction to the members of the board and confirmed that his department handles all the building permitting, code enforcements, historic preservations, and board of adjustments. Mr. Fajardo informed the board that the reason he was here today was that the City Commission had asked him and his staff to see what could be done to help incentivize art installations on private property.


Mr. Fajardo further stated that some of the incentives they had talked about included the possible reduction in open space requirements, defining what public art installations are and an option to may be contribute to a fund. Mr. Fajardo further stated that this is where things got a little dicey, as the City Attorney’s office had stated that, we could not require developers to either install or pay into the fund. Mr. Fajardo also stated that with the incentive to allow for additional redevelopment space, it might be something that is palatable to both parties, the City and the private sector. Mr. Fajardo further stated that on the other side, the other challenge is that the City is also trying to incentivize affordable housing.

Mr. Fajardo stated that what he hopes is that the board could use its experience and background to help in finding some recommendations to be able to pursue with these types of art installations on private development sites.

Board member Bonnie Clearwater stated that it is actually to their benefit as most developers now are recognizing that it is a way to brand their building. Mrs. Clearwater further stated that instead of giving the developers’ incentives show them examples of how it does benefit them.

Chairperson Sarah Glass inquired with Mr. Fajardo to explain how incentives could possibly cut into other incentives such as the affordable housing. Mr. Fajardo responded by stating that there was a way to incentivize and a way to mandate certain things. Mr. Fajardo stated that in the City of Fort Lauderdale and the entire State of Florida, you could not require what is commonly referred to as inclusionary zoning which basically says however big your property is you have to do fifteen percent affordable housing in different rates and this leaves us with finding other ways to do it. Mr. Fajardo further stated his concern was if we look at affordable housing as truly at a critical stage that if we start digging in too hard on incentivizing other programs such as public art on the development sites, we may be creating a path of least resistance for an applicant.

Board member “Phoenix” Lynn Marks stated that as an incentive, if it is public art and the developers needed to do a call to artist because they like the idea but do not want to handle the process then it could be an incentive that the City would handle that process for them.

Board member Robyn Vegas stated that a possible incentive for a developer that is interested in the arts would be to curate everything for them including finding the artist, bringing the art to them and bringing the project together. Mrs. Vegas also stated that this type of incentive makes it attractive to them as it saves them time and the hassle of having to deal with that aspect of the project.

3. New Business/Board Comments
Vice-chair Martha G. Steinkamp informed the board that she was invited last Friday to speak at the Norton Museum of Art where there was a wonderful modernist


Mexican exhibition where one of the highlights was Frida Kahlo and wanted to invite everyone to attend the exhibition.

4. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 7:10 PM.
